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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the 
charitable company for the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018. The Annual report serves the purposes of 
both a Trustees' report, and a Directors' report under company law. 

Since the academy qualifies as small under section 383, the strategic report required of medium and large 
companies under The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Director's Report) Regulations 2013 is not 
required. 

The Trust operates an academy for pupils aged 5 to 11 serving a catchment area in Bournemouth. It has a pupil 
capacity of 420 and had a roll of 414 in the school census on 18th May 2017. 

Structure, governance and management 

a. CONSTITUTION 

The Academy is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. 

The charitable company's Memorandum of Association is the primary governing document of the Academy 
Trust. 

The Trustees of Moord own St John's Church of England Primary School are also the directors of the charitable 
company for the purpose of company law. 

The charitable company is known as Moordown St John's Church of England Primary School. 

Details of the Trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and administrative details on 
page 1. 

b. MEMBERS' LIABILITY 

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the 
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such 
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be 
a member. 

c. TRUSTEES' INDEMNITIES 

In accordance with normal commercial practice the trust has insurance in place to protect Trustees and officers 
from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Trust business. The limit of this 
indemnity is £10,000,000 and this cover is provided as part of the Risk Protection Arrangement offered by the 
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). 

d. METHOD OF RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF TRUSTEES 

The management of the Academy is the responsibility of the Trustees who are elected and co-opted under the 
terms of the Articles of Association. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

e. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED FOR THE INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES 

The training and induction provided for new directors wi\\ depend upon their existing experience but would always 
include a tour of the Academy and a chance to meet staff and pupils. All Directors are provided with copies of 
policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake 
their role as directors. As there are normally only two or three new directors a year, induction tends to be done 
informally and is tailored specifically to the individual. Advantage is taken of specific courses offered by the 
Local Authority and other bodies such as the Bournemouth Septenary Trust (hereafter referred to as the 'BST'). 

f. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

The Full board of trustees (referred to as directors) meet 3 times annually, once in every academic term. The 
board devolve responsibility for monitoring, evaluation and approval of most statutory duties to 2 working groups 
made up of directors with members of the school senior leadership team invited to attend where necessary: 

• The Effective Resourcing Working Group meets up to 3 times each term and focuses on financial, 
personnel and school environment (premises) matters. The Working Group is responsible for monitoring, 
evaluating and reviewing policy and performance in relation to financial management and compliance with 
reporting and regulatory requirements. Considering financial controls assurance reports and drafting the 
annual budget including setting staffing levels. It is also responsible for matters pertaining to the budget 
and is authorised by the board to approve the following statutory policies and requirements: Teacher 
Appraisal; Pay Policy; Health and Safety; Central Record of Recruitment and Vetting; Complaints 
Procedure; Freedom of Information; Governance Allowances; Premises Management Documents; 
Equality Information and Objectives; Staff Conduct, Grievance and Capability; Statement of procedures for 
dealing with allegations of abuse against staff; 

• The Pupil Achievement Working Group meets up to 2 times each term to monitor, evaluate and review 
academy policy, practice and performance in relation to curriculum planning, communications, target 
setting and assessment, examinations and all pastoral issues. The Working Group focuses on pupil 
Admissions, Teaching, Learning and Assessment and Pupil Outcomes and is authorised by the board to 
approve the following statutory policies and requirements: Admissions arrangements; Accessibility plan; 
Home-school agreement document; School information published on a website; Register of pupils' 
attendance; Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS); Supporting pupils with medical conditions. Teaching, 
learning, Assessment and behaviour related policies although not statutory are brought to this working 
group for approval as and when appropriate. 

The following decisions are reserved to the Board of Directors: to determine any proposals for changes to the 
status or constitution of the Academy and its committee structure; to appoint or remove the Chairman and/or 
Vice Chairman; to appoint the Headteacher and Clerk to the Directors, to approve the School Development Plan 
and budget; agree policy for Special educational needs and disability; Minutes of, and papers considered at, 
meetings of the governing body and its committees; Approve Child protection policy and procedures. 

The Directors have devolved responsibility for day to day management of the Academy to the Head teacher and 
Senior Leadership Team (SL T). The SL T comprises the Headteacher, Deputy Head teacher, Assistant Head 
teacher, Finance Manager and the Admin and Personnel Manager. The SL T implements the policies ( 
including statutory policies) laid down by the Directors and reports back to them on performance. 

The Academy has a leadership structure which consists of the trustees, the Head Teacher and the 
Senior Leadership Team ( SL T) The aim of the leadership structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage 
involvement in decision making at all levels. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

The Directors are responsible for setting general policy, adopting a development plan and budget, approving the 
statutory accounts, monitoring the Academy by the use of budgets and other data, ensuring statutory 
processes are in place and making major strategic decisions about the direction of the Academy, capital 
expenditure and staff appointments. 

The Head Teacher is responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed budgets; a summary of this is in 
the Scheme of Delegation. Some spending control is devolved to Budget Holders which must be authorised 
through the Head Teacher. The Head Teacher is responsible for the appointment of staff, though appointment 
panels for teaching posts always include a Director trained in safer-recruitment practices. 

g. PAY POLICY FOR KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

The role of Chair and vice-chair of directors is entirely voluntary with no remuneration. Key management 
personnel in this Academy include the Head teacher, Deputy Head teacher, Assistant Head teacher, Finance 
Manager and Admin and Personnel manager. On conversion (December 1st 2015) the academy board adopted 
the school teachers pay and conditions document (STPCD 2015) to govern all school teachers pay and 
conditions including the Head teacher, Deputy Head teacher and assistant Head teacher. Subsequent releases 
of the STPCD are adopted by the academy board to ensure pay for teaching staff is commensurate with the 
national picture. The board delegate pay decisions affecting the head teacher to a pay committee comprising 
3 directors. The Effective Resourcing Personnel working group meet to monitor and approve pay decisions 
arising from the school's Appraisal Policy for all other teaching and leadership group staff. The directors appoint 
an external consultant to advise on the appraisal and pay of the head teacher. The Academy trust adopted the 
Bournemouth BG pay scales for support staff and the trust's finance and personnel managers are remunerated 
in accordance. 

h. TRADE UNION FACILITY TIME 

During the year ended 31 August 2018, no employees of the Academy Trust were relevant union officials. 

i. CONNECTED ORGANISATIONS, INCLUDING RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS 

A Local Collaborative Trust agreement exists between Muscliff Community School, St. Mark's CE Primary 
School, St. Michael's CE Primary School, Moordown St. John's CE Primary School, Kinson Primary School, 
Winton Primary School and Kingsleigh Primary School. The Local collaborative Trust is an umbrella trust 
(incorporated Dec 1st 2015) as The Bournemouth Septenary Trust (BST) 

The BST Vision - 'Excellence, Equity and Effectiveness' 

The Aims of the Trust are to: 

• Promote and secure outstanding Academy improvement so that every child in the trust can attend an 
outstanding Academy as judged by Ofsted in terms of the Academy's outcomes for children and learners, 
their Early years provision, the quality of teaching learning and assessment, the personal development, 
behaviour and welfare of learners and the effectiveness of leadership and management. 

• Innovate curriculum provision and pedagogy based on research and best practice that will raise 
achievements for all children and learners 

• Provide professional challenge and accountability in all of the key performance indicators including 
individual Academy's outcomes for children and learners, their Early Years provision, the quality of 
teaching learning and assessment, the personal development, behaviour and welfare of learners and the 
effectiveness of leadership and management. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

The BST operates a network of working groups that collaborate to continuously improve the provision and 
outcomes of the pupils represented in the 7 academies. Networks of subject leaders, deputy head teachers, 
school business managers and head teachers are active and their collaboration is directed by a BST action plan 
that is reviewed annually and drives change across the 7 schools in the 3 aims identified above. 

The strategic leadership of the Trust is provided by a board of directors that represent the 7 schools and their 
community and faith status. Operational leadership of the BST is delegated to two part-time Executive Head 
teachers who are responsible for the effective collaboration of the Trust to meet its aims and objectives and for 
the monitoring and evaluation of each Academy's performance. The Academy has written into its own articles 
details about the accountability procedures and relationship it has with the BST. In summary, there is a process 
of annual risk assessment by the academy across the key areas of pupil outcomes, quality of teaching and 
learning, leadership and management and behaviour, welfare and pupil safety. The academy self-evaluates 
against agreed criteria and undertakes a challenge meeting with the executive HT of the BST and an external 
consultant who brings independent moderation and challenge to the process. The BST memorandum & articles 
set out the accountability process and the potential intervention by the BST board of directors if the academy 
under performs. The accountability process of the BST impacts on and contributes to the academy's self
evaluation and school improvement planning, helping to challenge and focus priorities and to access support. 

Moordown St. John's CE Primary School also has a parents and friends association which is a fund raising body 
attached to the school. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

Objectives and Activities 

a. OBJECTS AND AIMS 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

1. The Academy Trust's object (the "Object") is specifically restricted to the following: to advance for the 
public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the 
foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a school with a designated 
Church of England religious character offering a broad and balanced curriculum (the "Academy") 
conducted in accordance with the principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally 
and in particular in relation to arranging for religious education and daily acts of worship, and having 
regard to any advice of the Diocesan Board of Education. 

2. In furtherance of the Object but not further or otherwise the Academy Trust may exercise the following 
powers: 

(a) to draw, make, accept, endorse, discount, execute and issue promissory notes, bills, cheques and other 
instruments, and to operate bank accounts in the name of the Academy Trust; 

(b) to raise funds and to invite and receive contributions provided that in raising funds the Academy Trust 
shall not undertake any substantial permanent trading activities and shall conform to any relevant statutory 
regulations; 

(c) (subject to such further consents as may be required by law or as may be required from the Trustees as 
landlord/licensor where this is the case) to acquire, alter, improve and charge or otherwise dispose of 
property; 

(d) subject to Article 6 below to employ such staff, as are necessary for the proper pursuit of the Object 
(including the maintenance of an effective Church of England ethos) and to make all reasonable and 
necessary provision for the payments of pensions and superannuation to staff and their dependants; 

(e) to establish or support, whether financially or otherwise, any charitable companies, trusts, associations or 
institutions formed for all or any of the Object; 

(f) to co-operate with other charities, other independent schools and schools maintained by a local authority, 
voluntary bodies and statutory authorities operating in furtherance of the Object and to exchange 
information and advice with them; 

(g) to pay out of funds of the Academy Trust the costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the 
formation and registration of the Academy Trust; 

(h) to establish, maintain, carry on, manage and develop the Academy at Moordown St John's Church of 
England Primary School, Vicarage Road, Moordown, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH9 2SA; 

(i) to offer scholarships, exhibitions, prizes and awards to pupils and former pupils, and otherwise to 
encourage and assist pupils and former pupils; 

U) to provide educational facilities and services to students of all ages and the wider community for the public 
benefit; 

(k) to carry out research into the development and application of new techniques in education in particular in 
relation to its approach to curriculum development and delivery and to publish the results of such 
research, and to develop means of benefiting from application of the experience of industry, commerce, 
other schools and the voluntary sector to the education of pupils in academies; 

(I) subject to such consents as may be required from the Trustees or otherwise required by law and/or by any 
contract entered into by or on behalf of the Academy Trust to borrow and raise money for the furtherance 
of the Object in such manner and on such security as the Academy Trust may think fit; 

(m) to deposit or invest any funds of the Academy Trust not immediately required for the furtherance of its 
Object (but to invest only after obtaining such advice from a financial expert as the Governors consider 
necessary and having regard to the suitability of investments and the need for diversification); 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

(n) to delegate the management of investments to a financial expert, but only on terms that: 
- the investment policy is set down in writing for the financial expert by the Governors; 
- every transaction is reported promptly to the Governors; 
- the performance of the investments is reviewed regularly with the Governors; 
- the Governors are entitled to cancel the delegation arrangement at any time; 
- the investment policy and the delegation arrangement are reviewed at least once a year; 
- all payments due to the financial expert are on a scale or at a level which is agreed in advance and are 

notified promptly to the Governors on receipt; and 
- the financial expert must not do anything outside the powers of the Governors; 

(o) to arrange for investments or other property of the Academy Trust to be held in the name of a nominee 
company acting under the control of the Governors or of a financial expert acting under their instructions, 
and to pay any reasonable fee required; 

(p) to provide indemnity insurance to cover the liability of Governors in accordance with, and subject to the 
conditions of section 232 to 235 of the Companies Act 2006, section 189 of the Charities Act 2011 or any 
other provision of law applicable to charitable companies and any such indemnity is limited accordingly; 

(q) to establish subsidiary companies to carry on any trade or business for the purpose of raising funds for the 
Academy Trust; and 

(r) to do all such other lawful things as are necessary for or are incidental to or conducive to the achievement 
of the Object and appropriate to the religious character of the Academy. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

The Academy's Aims 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

The aims of the Academy during the year ended 31 August 2018 are summarised below: 
• to continue to raise the standard of educational attainment and achievement of all pupils; 
• to provide a broad and balanced curriculum, including extra-curricular activities; 
• to ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in terms of resourcing, teaching and 

care; 
• to improve the effectiveness of the Academy by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure under 

continual review, 
• to provide value for money for the funds expended, 
• to comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements, 
• to conduct the Academy's business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and 

openness. 
At Moordown St. John's CE Primary School we exist to further the work of Christ through high quality 
relationships, teaching & learning. This fundamental truth is the essence of all that we are & all that we do. 

We believe that all pupils, staff, parents and governors are part of a community of learning, where standards and 
expectations are high and there is a real purpose in being part of the family of Christ. 

Our Spiritual Values 
We seek to further the work of Christ by expecting, nurturing and demonstrating the Fruits of the Spirit (Galatians 
5) in our day to day lives. The Fruits of the Spirit include Love, Joy, Peace, Goodness, Kindness, Patience, 
Gentleness, Faithfulness and Self-control. 

Rights and Responsibilities 
At Moordown St. John's we also aim to honour and fulfil the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the 
Child. 

'Rights' are things every child should have or be able to do. All children have the same rights. These rights are 
listed in the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child. Almost every country has agreed to these rights. All the 
rights are connected to each other, and all are equally important. Sometimes, we have to think about rights in 
terms of what is best for children in a situation, and what is critical to life and protection from harm. As children 
grow, they have more responsibility to make choices and exercise their rights. 

The MSJ Tree of Life 
Just like a fruit tree needs sunlight, food, good soil and water to give healthy fruit, we need God's love, our 
family, friends and community to help us grow in the fruits of the spirit. 

'But the fruit of the Spirit is love, joy, peace, forbearance, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness and self
control. Against such things there is no law' 

Galatians Chapter 5 v.22 

Our Learning Values 
SUCCESS (Skills, Understanding, Creativity, Curiosity, Enjoyment, Spirituality, Security) is at the centre of our 
school's ethos and identity. 

S -Skills that embed knowledge for a life full of learning and healthy relationships 
U - Understanding how knowledge and concepts can be applied and built upon to achieve deep learning 
C - Creativity to use skills and knowledge imaginatively to express oneself and solve problems 
C - Curiosity to explore, investigate and understand the world 
E - Enjoyment of life and of learning 
S - Spirituality where faith is nourished, respected, challenged and lived 
S - Security in themselves and who they are to reach their full potential 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

b. OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES 

Key priorities for the year are contained in our School Development Plan which is available from the School 
Office. Tracking of these targets can be accessed in the termly report to Trustees. Targets identified for this 
period include: 
Continue to improve provision and raise standards for all children by: 
1. Implementing and teaching the new school curriculum based in part on the new national curriculum 
2. Developing a successful tracking system for English and Maths for this year in the new national 

curriculum 
These objectives are in addition to the improvement of levels of attainment across all core subjects for all 
learners. 

c. PUBLIC BENEFIT 

The trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due 
regard to the Charity Commissioner's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties. 
They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy's aims and objectives and in planning its future 
activities. 

The Academy provides facilities for recreational and other leisure time occupation mainly for the children 
in the community in the interests of social welfare and with the interest of improving the life of the said 
community. 
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Strategic report 

MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

Achievements and performance 

a. KEY OUTCOMES FOR PUPILS 2018 

The information below is a summary of unverified pupil performance measures for 2018 and is compared to 
National & Local measures. 

Key: MSJ =Moordown St. John's CE Primary School 

Earlv Years Reachina Earlv Learnina Goals 
MSJ I B'mth I Nat 
82% 176% 172% 

KS1 
Readina Writina Maths RWM 

All Pupils ( Cohort: 601 
MSJ B'mth Nat MSJ B'mth Nat MSJ B'mth Nat MSJ B'mth Nat 

EXS 85% 78% 75% 87% 71% 70% 85% 79% 76% 78% 67% 65% 

GDS 37% 28% 26% 25% 17% 16% 35% 24% 22% 22% 13% 12% 
Disadvantaaed 

EXS 20% 63% 63% 40% 51% 55% 40% 61% 63% 20% 46% 50% 

GDS 20% 14% 14% 20% 8% 8% 0 13% 12% 0 6% 5% 

KS2 
I Readina Writina I GPS I Maths RWM 

All Punils 
MS B'mth Nat MS B'mth Nat MS B'mth Nat MS B'mth Nat MS B'mth Nat 
J J J J J 

EXS 93 75% 75 94 81% 78 94 78% 78 94 78% 76 93 66% 64% 

% % % % % % % % % 

GDS 41 28% 28 30 27% 20 57 36% 34 41 26% 24 22 13% 10% 

% % % % % % % % % 
Disadvantaaed Punils 

EXS 80 65% 64 80 73% 67 80 68% 67 80 68% 64 80 55% 51% 

% % % % % % % % % 

GDS 30 20% 18 20 15% 11 30 24% 24 30 18% 14 20 6% 4% 

% % % % % % % % % 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

Strengths and Improvements in the school's results in 2018: 
• Early Years: Good levels of development results maintained above national and above the median in 

Bournemouth. 
• Year 1 and end Year 2 phonics results are above the national this year and above the median in 

Bournemouth. This is a further improvement from 2017. 
• KS1: in 2018 our KS1 pupils performed above the national and median in Bournemouth in all areas and 

are in line with the highest outcomes in Bournemouth for combined achievement in Reading, writing and 
mathematics ( RWM) 

• Our outcomes in KS2 for pupils achieving the expected levels were the highest in Bournemouth in all 
areas except for writing, which were above the median score. 

• % of children working at greater depth at the end of KS2 is higher than the national and Bournemouth's 
median in all subjects and % of pupils working at greater depth for grammar, punctuation and spelling is 
well above the median for Bournemouth schools and all schools nationally. This has been a focus for us in 
2017-18 & is an improvement. 

• outperformed the disadvantage by 53%. IN KS1 & KS2 the non-disadvantaged outperformed the 
disadvantaged in all areas except at greater depth in GPS and writing. 

Ofsted and Church School (SIAMs) inspection outcomes and school self-evaluation outcomes and school 
development objectives. 

We continue to be a to be a 'Good' school as judged by Ofsted (February 2018) and achieved a judgement of 
'Outstanding' in our 2015 statutory Church School inspection. 

Our school based evidence and overall self-evaluation judgements for 2018 continue to be 'Good' and 
'outstanding' as a Church School 

School development priorities for 2018-19 
• Further improve pupils' ability to spell words accurately;Focus on helping all pupils achieve at a greater 

depth in reading & writing; 
• In conjunction with the local Jurassic Maths hub, to further develop and embed consistency in 

mathematics teaching and ensure consistency in pupil outcomes; 
• To continue to develop children's social, emotional, mental health and resilience; 
• To ensure all areas of the EYFS curriculum nurtures , engages , motivates and promotes a sense of 

achievement and commitment to independent learning; 
• To develop a school culture that enables all school leaders and directors to be proactive in sustaining 

whole school improvements with a focus on: 
• Leaner planning requirements for teachers in line with work-life balance improvements that respond to 

children's learning needs; 
• Building on the distinctive Christian ethos of the school 
• Continuing to evaluate the benefits of this Single Academy Trust becoming part of a Multi Academy Trust. 

Key Financial Indicators 2017-18 

Based on May 2018 census date, the proportion of pupils known to be eligible for free school meals is 6.5% 
compared to 13.6% nationally. The proportion of disabled pupils and those with special educational needs is 
high at 17.1%. Around 20% of pupils are from minority ethnic groups with 16.6% having a first language not 
believed to be English. The school benefits from having a relatively stable roll and serves an area with a diverse 
deprivation profile. Bournemouth is ranked 121st out of 326 local authorities across England in the rank of 
average score (where 1 is the most deprived and 326 is the least deprived). This puts it in the middle third most 
deprived areas. 
100% of pupils enter the school having attended a nursery provision. 
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Attendance 

MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

Our target for attendance for the academic year 2017 - 2018 was 96.50%. The academy attendance achieved 
for the whole year was 96.12% (Years 1 - 6) / 95.99% (Years R - 6). 
These figures are disappointing, reflecting a decrease on the levels achieved in 2016/2017 (of 96.31% and 
96.26% respectively). However, the figure for Years 1 - 6 reflects a slight increase on that achieved in 
2015/2016 (96.00%) with the level for Years R -6 being comparable (96.00%). 
Our persistent absence (PA) target for the 2017/2018 academic year was set at 15 children in Years 1 - 6. 
Persistent absentees are children who have achieved 90% or less attendance. 
At the end of the academic year, 23 pupils in Years 1 - 6 were considered persistent absentees. Out of these 
pupils, only 5 were also considered PA in 2016/2017; 2 of which have known health conditions. 
The headline PA figure initially looks concerning. However, when looking at the individual cases several of the 
absences were unavoidable and have therefore skewed the figures. When these children are taken out of the 
equation our PA figure is in line with target. 
Regular monitoring of attendance takes place, including half-termly meetings between the Inclusion Leader, 
Director for Attendance and Admin/Personnel Manager. The Headteacher also attends when his diary permits. 

When attendance is a concern, families are invited to regular review meetings where the reasons for the 
absences are discussed and support offered/action undertaken. 

b. GOING CONCERN 

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues 
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of 
the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies. 

Financial review 

Most of the Academy's income is obtained from the Department for Education (DIE) via the ESFA in the forrn of 
recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DIE during 
the year ended 31 August 2018 and the associated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the Statement 

of Financial Activities. 

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the DIE which are shown in the Statement of Financial 
Activities as restricted income in the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset fund balance is reduced by 
annual depreciation charges over the useful economic life of the assets concerned, as defined in the Academy's 

accounting policies. 

During the 12 months to 31 August 2018, the Academy received total income of £1,668,537 and incurred total 
expenditure of £1,679,840. As at 31 August the funds brought forward were £161,694 of unrestricted funds. The 
funds carried forward as unspent were £150,191 of unrestricted funds. Therefore, there was a deficit in the year 

of £11,503. 

The Academy has a deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of its non teaching staff. The 
deficit is incorporated within the statement of Financial Activity with details in Note 20. 

Key financial policies adopted in the year include the Financial Procedures and Scheme of Delegation, which 
sets out the framework for financial management, including financial responsibilities of the board, headteacher, 
senior leadership team and other staff, as well as delegated authority for spending. Other policies reviewed and 
updated where necessary included Reserves Policy, Depreciation Policy and Insurance. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

a. RESERVES POLICY 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

The trustees review the reserve levels of the Academy annually. This review encompasses the nature of 
income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The 
trustees have determined that the appropriate level of free reserves should be equivalent to two month's payroll 
cost, approximately £100,000. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between 
spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent 
maintenance, long term sickness, and a temporary dip in pupil numbers on roll or where unforeseen costs are 
incurred plus a contribution towards future capital projects. The academy's current level of free reserves (total 
funds less the amount held in fixed assets and restricted funds) is detailed in the attached report. 

b. INVESTMENTS POLICY 

All funds surplus to immediate requirements are invested to optimal effect. 
Due to the nature of funding the Academy may at times hold cash balances surplus to its short term 
requirements. The trustees have authorised the opening of additional short term bank investment accounts to 
take advantage of higher interest rates. No other form of investment is authorised. 

c. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy are as follows: 

Financial- the Academy has considerable reliance on government funding through the EFA. In the last year 92% 
of the Academy's incoming resources were ultimately government funded and whilst this level is expected to 
continue, there is no assurance that government policy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will 
continue at the same levels or on the same terms. 

Failures in Governance and/or Management - the risk in this area arises from potential failure to effectively 
manage the Academy's finances, internal controls, compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory returns, 
etc. The trustees continue to review and ensure that appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these rises. 

Reputational - the continuing success of the Academy is dependent on continuing to attract applicants in 
sufficient numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk trustees ensure that 
student success and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed. 

Safeguarding and Child Protection - the trustees continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in 
the areas of selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health 
and safety and discipline. 

Staffing - the success of the Academy is reliant on the quality of its staff and so the trustees monitor and review 
policies and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as ensuring there is clear 
succession planning. 

Fraud and mismanagement of funds - The Academy has appointed an external advisor to carry out checks on 
financial systems and records as required by the Academy Financial Handbook. All finance staff receive training 
to keep them up to date with financial practice requirements and develop their skills in this area. 

The Academy has continued to strengthen its risk management process throughout the year by improving the 
process and ensuring staff awareness. A risk register is maintained and reviewed and updated on a regular 
basis. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

d. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Academy has agreed a risk management strategy, a risk register and a risk management plan. These have 
been discussed by trustees and include the financial risks to the Academy. The register and plan are constantly 
reviewed in light of any new information and formally reviewed annually. 

The trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, those relating to its finances, 
teaching, facilities, GDPR and other operational areas. The trustees have implemented a number of systems to 
assess and minimise those risks, including internal controls described elsewhere. Where significant financial risk 
still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. 

Whilst the Academy is over-subscribed in some year groups, risks to revenue funding from a falling roll are 
small, however the freeze on the government's overall education budget, changes in funding arrangements for 
special educational needs and increasing employment and premises costs mean that budgets will be 
increasingly tight in coming years. 

The trustees examine the financial health formally every term, reviewing performance against budgets and 
overall expenditure by means of regular update reports at the termly Effective resources working group meeting. 
Trustees ensure sufficient funds are held to cover all known and anticipated commitment. 

Fund raising 

The schools fundraising in carried out by the Moordown St Johns Parent and Friends Association (PFA). The 
PFA is run by a group of volunteers (parents, friends and teachers of the pupils) who meet once a month to 
discuss the school's current fund raising needs. The School Finance Manager works closely with the group. 
The PFA carry out regular fundraising activities such as discos and Summer and Christmas Fairs to provide 
support to the school for items that we struggle to cover within our current budget allocation. 
The PFA's approach to fundraising is to provide fun and affordable activities for the pupils throughout the year to 
generate additional income for the school. Their main principle being that the funds raised are used to benefit 
the school and its pupils. 

Costs are minimal as activities are carried out at the school and run by parent and staff volunteers. 
To date, neither the school or the PFA have worked with or appointed commercial participators or professional 
fund raisers. 

Fundraising is always carried out legally, openly and transparently, honestly and respectfully. All minutes from 
the monthly meetings are made available to all parents, teachers and interested parties with a detailed 
breakdown of income and costs for all events. 

The School and PFA take reasonable steps to ensure all donors are treated fairly, especially taking in to account 
the age and vulnerability of the individuals making the donation; school pupils in many cases. If the School or 
PFA has reasonable grounds for believing that an individual lacks the capacity to make a decision/lack of 
understanding about a donation, then a donation will not be taken. 

The PFA regularly review its funding approaches to ensure they are reasonable and not intrusive or persistent 
and encourages new volunteers to join to bring new ideas and relieve others who may feel under pressure to 
volunteer for all activities. 

Any complaints regarding the PFA and Fundraising are to refer to the school's Policy and Procedures for 
Complaints. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

Plans for future periods 

a. FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

The Academy will continue to strive to provide outstanding education and improve the levels of performance of 
its pupils at all levels. The Academy will continue to aim to attract high quality teachers and support staff in order 
to deliver its objectives. 

The Academy will continue to work with partner schools to improve the educational opportunities for students in 
the wider community. 

Full details of our plans for the future are given in our Academy Development Plan, which is available on our 
website or from the Clerk to the Governors. 

Moordown St. John's School is part of the Bournemouth Septenary (umbrella) Trust. It uses collaborative 
working within the 7 schools in the Trust to support the sharing of ideas learning and development of colleagues, 
children and staff. The school has supported a number of efficiency savings by sharing resources, including 
staff. 

The Full board of trustees (referred to as directors) meet at least 3 times annually, once in every academic term. 
The board devolve responsibility for monitoring, evaluation and approval of most statutory duties to 2 working 
groups made up of directors with members of the school senior leadership team invited to attend where 
necessary: 

The Board has 12 positions of which 10 are currently filled. During the past 12 months we have had the 
retirement of Amanda Johnston from the board. We are recruiting for the two positions on the board and are 
strategically planning co-opting further directors as part of the succession plan. 

The Effective Resourcing Working Group meets up to 3 times each term and focuses on financial, personnel 
and school environment (premises) matters. The Working Group is responsible for monitoring, evaluating and 
reviewing policy and performance in relation to financial management and compliance with reporting and 
regulatory requirements. Considering financial controls assurance reports and . drafting the annual budget 
including setting staffing levels. It is also responsible for matters pertaining to the budget and is authorised by 
the board to approve the following statutory policies and requirements: Teacher Appraisal; Pay Policy; Health 
and Safety; Central Record of Recruitment and Vetting; Complaints Procedure; Freedom of Information; 
Governance Allowances; Premises Management Documents; Equality Information and Objectives; Staff 
Conduct, Grievance and Capability; Statement of procedures for dealing with allegations of abuse against staff; 
The Pupil Achievement Working Group meets up to 3 times each term to monitor, evaluate and review 
academy policy, practice and performance in relation to curriculum planning, communications, target setting and 
assessment, examinations and all pastoral issues. The Working Group focuses on pupil Admissions, Teaching, 
Learning and Assessment and Pupil Outcomes and is authorised by the board to approve the following statutory 
policies and requirements: Admissions arrangements; Accessibility plan; Home-school agreement document; 
School information published on a website; Register of pupils' attendance; Early Years Foundation Stage 
(EYFS); Supporting pupils with medical conditions. Teaching, learning, Assessment and behaviour related 
policies although not statutory are brought to this working group for approval as and when appropriate. 

The Pupil achievement group reviewed the pupil admissions policy for 2019 intake following recommendations 
from the DFE Schools admission code and Diocese which went for consultation. It has approved and monitored 
the use of the school's pupil progress checking tool and the intervention work and spend of the pupil premium 
grant and sports premium to improve educational standards. The quality of teaching and learning is monitored 
and this is supported by Director learning walks and school visits where the use of strategies and policies are 
reviewed. Directors have designated links with subject leaders in the school to support the work of this group. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

The performance in the national tests, Ofsted inspection reports and the Bournemouth Septenary trust external 
assessments of the school are all used by the senior leadership team and Directors to review and set actions to 
improve the schools performance. 

A skills audit is completed annually to ensure the skill set of the Directors continues to be appropriate and 
supports the succession plan for Director recruitment. The Directors Board reviews annually its code of conduct, 
ways of working and areas of development for future training to ensure it remains effective and maintains the 
high educational performance of school. We plan to complete our next self-evaluation as a Board of Directors in 
March 2019. 

The following decisions are reserved to the Directors: to determine any proposals for changes to the status or 
constitution of the Academy and its committee structure; to appoint or remove the Chairman and/or Vice 
Chairman; to appoint the Headteacher and Clerk to the Directors, to approve the School Development Plan and 
budget; agree policy for Special educational needs and disability; Minutes of, and papers considered at, 
meetings of the governing body and its committees; Approve Child protection policy and procedures. 

The Directors have devolved responsibility for day to day management of the Academy to the Head teacher and 
Senior Leadership Team (SL T). The SMT comprises the Headteacher, Deputy Head teacher, Assistant Head 
teacher, Finance Manager and the Adm in and Personnel Manager. The SL T implements the policies laid 
down by the Directors and report back to them on performance. 

The Effective Resourcing Group has this year overseen and approved an increase in general repairs and 
maintenance to the schools building, pool and grounds since the appointment of a School Site Manager and 
Pool Technician. As a result, the Effective Resourcing Group has overseen the withdrawal from other site 
maintenance contracts which have been brought back in house, allowing for efficiencies, cost savings and 
maximization of income for the school. At all times the schools senior leadership team have always supported 
the Effective Resourcing Group with these decisions working hard with all staff to make the changes go 
smoothly. 

The Effective Resourcing Group made investment in the school's CCTV and controlled door access during the 
year to increase security for its staff and pupils. Investment was also made in fixed sports equipment in the 
school playground to promote and encourage healthy and active play during break times. This follows the 
Effective Resourcing Groups work with the senior leadership team across many years to allow budgets to be set 
that not only ensured the schools high standards of education and pastoral care were maintained but built 
sufficient funds for other areas of investment. 

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN 

The Academy and its trustees do not act as the custodian trustees of any other charity. 

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS 

Insofar as the Trustees are aware: 

• there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and 

• that Trustees have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustee in order to be aware of 
any relevant audit information and to establish that the charitable company's auditors are aware of that 
information. 
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AUDITORS 

MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

The auditors, Griffin, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. The Designated Trustees will propose 
a motion re-appointing the auditors at a meeting of the Trustees. 

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of Trustees, as the 
company directors, on 29 November 2018 and signed on its behalf by: 

A Swain 
Chair of Trustees 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Moordown St John's Church of 
England Primary School has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However 
such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and 
can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

The board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head Teacher, as Accounting Officer, 
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management 
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between 
Moordown St John's Church of England Primary School and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also 
responsible for reporting to the board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 

GOVERNANCE 

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the 
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The board of Trustees has formally met 4 times during the year. 
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows: 

Trustee 

A Swain, Chair 
P Cherrett, Vice Chair 
P Herbert, Head Teacher 
Z Bonds 
N Thomas 
M Brito 
S Gates 
S Grinsted 
N Laing 
T Simpson 
A Johnston 

Meetings attended 

4 
3 
4 
4 
3 
3 
4 
4 
3 
2 
1 

Out of a possible 

4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
1 

The Full board of Trustees (referred to as directors) meet at minimum 3 times annually, once in every academic 
term. The board devolve responsibility for monitoring, evaluation and approval of most statutory duties to 2 
working groups made up of directors with members of the school senior leadership team invited to attend where 
necessary. 

The Board has 12 positions of which 11 are currently filled. During the past 12 months we have had the 
retirement of Karen Gillis and Jo Lappin from the board and Nathan Thomas has joined. We are recruiting for 
the one position on the board and are strategically planning co-opting further directors as part of the succession 
plan. 

The performance in the national tests, Ofsted inspection reports and the Bournemouth Septenary trust external 
assessments of the school are all used by the senior leadership team and Directors to review and set actions to 
improve the schools performance. 

A skills audit is completed annually to ensure the skill set of the Directors continues to be appropriate and 
supports the succession plan for Director recruitment The Directors Board reviews annually its code of conduct, 
ways of working and areas of development for future training to ensure it remains effective and maintains the 
high educational performance of the school. We plan to complete our next self-evaluation as a Board of 
Directors in March 2018. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued) 

The following decisions are reserved to the Board of Directors: to determine any proposals for changes to the 
status or constitution of the Academy and its committee structure; to appoint or remove the Chairman and/or 
Vice Chairman; to appoint the Headteacher and Clerk to the Directors; to approve the School Development Plan 
and budget; agree policy for Special educational needs and disability; Minutes of, and papers considered at, 
meetings of the governing body and its committees; Approve Child protection policy and procedures. 

The Directors have devolved responsibility for day to day management of the Academy to the Head teacher and 
Senior Leadership Team (SL T). The SL T comprises the Headteacher, Deputy Head teacher, Assistant Head 
teacher, Finance Manager and the Adm in and Personnel Manager. The SL T implements the policies laid down 
by the Directors and report back to them on performance. 

The Effective Resourcing Working Group is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. 
The Effective Resourcing Working Group meets 3 times each term and focuses on financial, personnel and 
school environment (premises) matters. 

The Working Group is responsible for monitoring, evaluating and reviewing policy and performance in relation to 
financial management and compliance with reporting and regulatory requirements, considering financial controls 
assurance reports and drafting the annual budget including setting staffing levels. It is also responsible for 
matters pertaining to the budget and is authorised by the board to approve the following statutory policies and 
requirements: Teacher Appraisal; Pay Policy; Health and Safety; Central Record of Recruitment and Vetting; 
Complaints Procedure; Freedom of Information; Governance Allowances; Premises Management Documents; 
Equality Information and Objectives; Staff Conduct, Grievance and Capability; and Statement of procedures for 
dealing with allegations of abuse against staff. 

The Effective Resourcing Working Group has this year overseen a significant increase in the use of the school 
swimming pool for both the school and wider community following the pools deepening. This and the retirement 
of the schools caretaker necessitated a change to school cleaning provisions and overall site maintenance. The 
Effective Resourcing Group has overseen the start of a new cleaning contract and the withdrawal from other site 
maintenance contracts, allowing for efficiencies and cost savings for the school. At all times the schools Senior 
Leadership Team have always supported the Effective Resourcing Working Group with these decisions working 
hard with all staff to make the changes go smoothly. 

The Effective Resourcing Working Group made investment in the schools IT equipment, purchasing 100 laptops 
and upgrading vital server hardware. This follows the Effective Resourcing Working Groups work with the Senior 
Leadership Team across many years to allow budgets to be set that not only ensured the schools high standards 
of education and pastoral care were maintained, but built sufficient funds for vital IT equipment. 

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: 

Trustee 

M Brito 
P Cherrett, 
S Gates 
S Grinsted 
P Herbert, Head Teacher 
N Thomas 
A Johnston 
A Swain 

Meetings attended 

8 
6 
5 
7 
8 
7 
2 
1 

Out of a possible 

8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
4 
8 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued) 

The Pupil Achievement Working Group meets 3 times each term to monitor, evaluate and review academy 
policy, practice and performance in relation to curriculum planning, communications, target setting and 
assessment, examinations and all pastoral issues. The Working Group focuses on pupil Admissions, Teaching, 
Learning and Assessment and Pupil Outcomes and is authorised by the board to approve the following statutory 
policies and requirements: Admissions arrangements; Accessibility plan; Home-school agreement document; 
School information published on a website; Register of pupils' attendance; Early Years Foundation Stage 
(EYFS); Supporting pupils with medical conditions. Teaching, learning, Assessment and behaviour related 
policies although not statutory are brought to this working group for approval as and when appropriate. 

The Pupil Achievement Working Group has made changes to the pupil admissions policy for the 2018 intake, 
following recommendations from the DFE Schools admission code and the Diocese, which went for consultation. 
It has approved and monitors; the use of the school's pupil progress checking tool; the intervention work; and 
the spend of the pupil premium grant to improve educational standards. The quality of teaching and learning is 
monitored and this is supported by Director learning walks and school visits, where the use of strategies and 
policies are reviewed. Directors have designated links with subject leaders in the school to support the work of 
this group. 

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY 

As Accounting Officer, the Head Teacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy delivers good value in 
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational 
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. 

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy's use of its resources has provided good value for money 
during each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, 
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the academy has 
delivered improved value for money during the year by: 

A Local Collaborative Trust, the Bournemouth Septenary Trust (BST), an umbrella academy trust (UT) 
agreement exists between Muscliff Community School, St. Mark's CE Primary School, St. Michael's CE Primary 
School, Moordown St. John's CE Primary School, Kinson Primary School, Winton Primary School and Kingsleigh 
Primary School. 

The vision for the Umbrella Trust (UT) is - 'Excellence, Equity and Effectiveness' and 'Outstanding Together'. 

The Septenary Business Managers are, as a group, supportive of each other in achieving value for money and 
economies of scale for each of the Trust schools. 

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify 
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of 
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Moordown St John's Church of England 
Primary School for the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual 
report and financial statements. 

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK 

The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy is exposed together with the operating, 
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of Trustees is 
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy's 
significant risks, that has been in place for the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and up to the date of 
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued) 

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK 

The academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information 
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. 
In particular, it includes: 

• comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports 
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees; 

• regular reviews by the Effective Resourcing Working Group of reports which indicate financial 
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure 
programmes; 

• setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 
• clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines. 
• delegation of authority and segregation of duties; 
• identification and management of risks. 

The board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided not to 
appoint an internal auditor. However, the Trustees have appointed Griffin, the external auditors, to perform 
additional checks. 

The reviewers' role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the 
academy's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included: 

• Purchase and cash receipts 
• Payroll 
• Income and cash receipts 
• Fixed assets - acquisition and disposal 
• Financial budgeting and monitoring 
• Regularity 
• Governance 
• Risk management 

On a semi-annual basis, the external auditors report to the board of Trustees through the Effective Resourcing 
Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of Trustees' financial 
responsibilities. 

The internal auditor delivered their schedule of work as intended and a plan is in place to address weaknesses 
and ensure continuous improvement. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued) 

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 

As Accounting Officer, the Head Teacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by: 

• the work of the external auditors; 
• the financial management and governance self-assessment process; 
• the work of the executive managers within the academy who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of the internal control framework. 

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal 
control by the Effective Resourcing Working Group and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place. 

Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees on 29 November 2018 and signed on their behalf, 
by: 

A Swain 
Chair of Trustees 

P Herbert 
Accounting Officer 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE 

As Accounting Officer of Moordown St John's Church of England Primary School I have considered my 
responsibility to notify the academy trust board of trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of 
material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the 
academy trust, under the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for 
Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial 
Handbook 2017. 

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use 
of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the 
academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2017. 

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered 
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of 
trustees and ESFA. 

;~ 
P Herbert 
Accounting Officer 

Date: 29 November 2018 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are 
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual 
Accounts Direction issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law 
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of 
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the 
Trustees are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

• observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 
2017 to 2018; 

• make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that 
the charitable company will continue in business. 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain 
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position 
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies 
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies 
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial 
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for 
the purposes intended. 

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees on 29 November 2018 and signed on its behalf by: 

A Swain 
Chair of Trustees 
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MOORD OWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF 
MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

OPINION 

We have audited the financial statements of Moordown St John's Church of England Primary School (the 
'academy') for the year ended 31 August 2018 which comprise the Statement of financial activities incorporating 
income and expenditure account, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied 
in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 
2017 to 2018 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the academy's affairs as at 31 August 2018 and of its incoming 
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 
2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the Education and Skills Funding 

Agency. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including 
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to 
report to you where: 
• the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 

not appropriate; or 
• the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may 

cast significant doubt about the academy's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of 
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are 

authorised for issue. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF 
MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

OTHER INFORMATION 

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors' report thereon. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in 
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which 
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

• the Trustees' report and the Strategic report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION 

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy and its environment obtained in the course of 
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 
received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

• certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of 
the academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements 
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF 
MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the academy or to cease operations, or 
have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 
Auditors' report. 

USE OF OUR REPORT 

This report is made solely to the academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy's members 
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy and its 
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

MNt~~ 
Misty Nickells FCA (Senior statutory auditor) 

for and on behalf of 

Griffin 

Chartered Accountants 
Statutory Auditor 

165 High Street 
Honiton 
Devon 
EX14 1LQ 
29 November 2018 
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MOORD OWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO MOORDOWN 
ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING 

AGENCY 

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 25 November 2015 and further to the requirements 
of the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 
2018, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed 
and income received by Moordown St John's Church of England Primary School during the year 1 September 
2017 to 31 August 2018 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial 
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

This report is made solely to Moordown St John's Church of England Primary School and the ESFA in 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to 
Moordown St John's Church of England Primary School and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in 
a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than Moordown St John's Church of England Primary School and the ESFA, for 
our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY 
SCHOOL'S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANT 

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Moordown St John's Church of England 
Primary School's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 December 2015, and the 
Academies Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2017, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and 
income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the 
authorities which govern them. 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical 
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the 
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018. We report to you whether anything has come 
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and 
income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes 
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

APPROACH 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by 
the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. 

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and 
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on 
regularity. 

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and 
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that 
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the 
academy's income and expenditure. 

Page 29 



' - \ ~'---------------------------------------

MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO MOORDOWN 
ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING 

AGENCY (continued) 

CONCLUSION 

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the 
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been 
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which 
govern them. 

\\~;~ 
Misty Nickells FCA 

Griffin 

Chartered Accountants 
Statutory Auditor 

165 High Street 
Honiton 
Devon 
EX14 1LQ 

29 November 2018 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

Restricted 
Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset Total Total 

funds funds funds funds funds 
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017 

Note £ £ £ £ £ 

INCOME FROM: 

Donations and capital grants 2 36,685 8,624 45,309 38,830 
Charitable activities 3 28,301 1,526,288 1,554,589 1,575,707 
Other trading activities 4 76,887 76,887 81,934 
Investments 5 143 143 152 
Other income 233 233 36,000 

TOTAL INCOME 142,249 1,526,288 8,624 1,677,161 1,732,623 

EXPENDITURE ON: 

Raising funds 20,243 20,243 24,165 
Charitable activities 128,482 1,639,115 28,764 1,796,361 1,741,048 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 6 148,725 1,639,115 28,764 1,816,604 1,765,213 

NET BEFORE TRANSFERS (6,476) (112,827) (20,140) (139,443) (32,590) 
Transfers between Funds 16 (5,027) 4,827 200 

NET EXPENDITURE BEFORE 
OTHER RECOGNISED GAINS 
AND LOSSES (11,503) (108,000) (19,940) (139,443) (32,590) 

Actuarial gains on defined 
benefit pension schemes 20 131,000 131,000 150,000 

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS (11,503) 23,000 (19,940) (8,443) 117,410 

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS: 

Total funds brought forward 161,694 (844,000) 82,739 (599,567) (716,977) 

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED 150,191 (821,000) 62,799 (608,010) (599,567) 
FORWARD 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 
REGISTERED NUMBER: 09881224 

FIXED ASSETS 

Tangible assets 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Debtors 

Cash at bank and in hand 

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within 
one year 

NET CURRENT ASSETS 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2018 

Note £ 

13 

14 92,040 

241,335 

333,375 

15 (183,184) 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 20 

NET LIABILITIES INCLUDING PENSION 
SCHEME LIABILITIES 

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY 

Restricted income funds: 

Restricted income funds excluding pension 
liability 62,799 

Pension reserve (821,000) 

Total restricted income funds 

Unrestricted income funds 16 

TOTAL DEFICIT 

2018 
£ 

62,799 

150,191 

212,990 

(821,000) 

(608,010) 

(758,201) 

150,191 

(608,010) 

£ 

75,195 

260,337 

335,532 

(156,557) 

82,739 

(844,000) 

2017 
£ 

65,458 

178,975 

244,433 

(844,000) 

(599,567) 

(761,261) 

161,694 

(599,567) 

The financial statements on pages 31 to 56 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on 29 
November 2018 and are signed on their behalf, by: 

A Swain 
Chair of Trustees 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

2018 
Note £ 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities 18 (1,895) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest from investments 143 
Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets 238 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (26,112) 
Capital grants from DfE Group 8,624 

Net cash used in investing activities (17,107) 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year (19,002) 

Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 260,337 

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward 19 241,335 

2017 
£ 

88,862 

152 
36,000 

(93,023) 
8,635 

(48,236) 

40,626 

219,711 

260,337 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, 
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below. 

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have 
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting 
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by ESFA, 
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. 

Moordown St John's Church of England Primary School constitutes a public benefit entity as defined 
by FRS 102. 

1.2 Fund accounting 

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of 
the charitable objects of the academy at the discretion of the Trustees. 

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes 
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. 

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the 
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group. 

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

1.3 Income 

All income is recognised once the academy has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the 
income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably. 

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure 
account on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not 
expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is 
received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as 
deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued. 

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities incorporating 
income and expenditure account in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect 
of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability. 

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the 
asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in 
the restricted fixed asset fund. 

Sponsorship income provided to the academy which amounts to a donation is recognised in the 
Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account in the period in which 
it is receivable, where receipt is probable and it is measurable. 

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where receipt is probable and the amount can be 
reliably measured. 

other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period in which it is receivable and 
to the extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service. 

1.4 Expenditure 

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic 
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in 
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by 
activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, 
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single 
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity 
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those 
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the 
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use. 

Expenditure on raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the academy to raise funds for its 
charitable purposes and includes costs of all fund raising activities events and non-charitable trading. 

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the academy's educational operations, 
including support costs and those costs relating to the governance of the academy appointed to 
charitable activities. 

All expenditure is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

1.5 Going concern 

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any 
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of 
the academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a 
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and 
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to 
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparing the financial statements. 

1.6 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation 

All assets costing more than £1,000 are capitalised and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and 
any provision for impairment. 

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the 
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and 
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached 
to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted 
fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure 
account and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged 
directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income 
and expenditure account. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, 
depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund. 

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to 
write off the cost of these assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives 
on the following bases: 

Furniture and fixtures 
Computer equipment 

7 years straight line 
3 years straight line 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying 
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment 
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure 
account. 

1.7 Operating leases 

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities incorporating 
income and expenditure account on a straight line basis over the lease term. 

1.8 Debtors 

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. 
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

1.9 Cash at Bank and in hand 

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar 
account. 

1.10 Liabilities and provisions 

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a 
result of a past event; it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, 
and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount 
that the academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced 
payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of 
the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is 
material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is 
recognised within interest payable and similar charges. 

1.11 Financial instruments 

The academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and 
financial liabilities of the academy and their measurement basis are as follows: 

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments 
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments. 
Amounts due to the academy's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment. 
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. 

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are 
measured at amortised costs as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social security are not included in 
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial 
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services 
rather than cash or another financial instruments. Amounts due to the academy's wholly owned 
subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment. 

1.12 Taxation 

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 
201 O and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. 
Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains 
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are 
applied exclusively to charitable purposes. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

1.13 Pensions 

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension 
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Governments Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit 
schemes. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of 
pensions over employees' working lives with the academy in such a way that the pension cost is a 
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are 
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective 
unit credit method. As stated in note 20, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is 
insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as 
a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the 
period to which they relate. 

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust 
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and 
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted 
at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term 
and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are 
updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current 
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. 
They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit 
liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and 
expenditure account and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest 
income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the 
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between 
the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised 
in other recognised gains and losses. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

2. 

1.14 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions: 

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting 
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. 
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a 
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The 
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any 
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the 
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full 
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the 
pensions liability at 31 August 2018. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll 
forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension 
liability. 

Critical areas of judgment: 

The academy obtains use of fixed assets as a lessee. The classification of such leases as operating 
or finance lease requires the Academy to determine, based on an evaluation of terms and conditions 
of the arrangements, whether it retains or acquires the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
these assets and accordingly whether the lease requires an asset and liability to be recognised in 
the balance sheet. 

INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS 

Restricted 
Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset Total Total 

funds funds funds funds funds 
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017 

£ £ £ £ £ 

Donations 36,685 36,685 30,195 
Capital Grants 8,624 8,624 8,635 

36,685 8,624 45,309 38,830 

Total 2017 30,195 8,635 38,830 
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4. 

MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 
funds funds funds 

2018 2018 2018 
£ £ £ 

DfEIESFA grants 

General Annual Grant 1,304,540 1,304,540 
Other DfE/ESFA Grants 93,353 93,353 
Pupil Premium 93,793 93,793 

1,491,686 1,491,686 

Other government grants 

Special Educational Needs 34,602 34,602 

34,602 34,602 

Other funding 

Other income from the academy trust's 
educational operations 6,170 6,170 
Internal catering income 15,756 15,756 
Other 6,375 6,375 

28,301 28,301 

28,301 1,526,288 1,554,589 

Total 2017 21,206 1,554,501 1,575,707 

OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 
funds funds funds 

2018 2018 2018 
£ £ £ 

Hire of facilities 70,332 70,332 
Other 6,555 6,555 

76,887 76,887 

Total 2017 81,934 81,934 

Total 
funds 
2017 

£ 

1,334,327 
81,210 
95,447 

1,510,984 

43,517 

43,517 

3,210 
17,996 

21,206 

1,575,707 

Total 
funds 
2017 

£ 

64,891 
17,043 

81,934 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

5. INVESTMENT INCOME 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 
funds funds funds 

2018 2018 2018 
£ £ £ 

Bank interest 143 143 

Total 2017 152 152 

6. EXPENDITURE 

Staff costs Premises Other costs Total 
2018 2018 2018 2018 

£ £ £ £ 

Expenditure on raising 
voluntary income 20,243 20,243 
Education: 

Direct costs 1,164,959 72,714 1,237,673 
Support costs 299,319 123,036 136,333 558,688 

1,464,278 123,036 229,290 1,816,604 

Total 2017 1,407,619 100,335 257,259 1,765,213 

Total 
funds 
2017 

£ 

152 

Total 
2017 

£ 

24,165 

1,205,506 
535,542 

1,765,213 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

7. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES 

DIRECT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS 

Wages and salaries 
National insurance 
Pension cost 
Depreciation 
Educational supplies 
Staff development 
Other costs 
Supply teachers 
Technology costs 

SUPPORT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS 

Wages and salaries 
National insurance 
Pension cost 
Depreciation 
Pension income 
Other costs 
Maintenance of premises and equipment 
Cleaning 
Rent and rates 
Heat and light 
Insurance 
Security and transport 
Catering 
Technology costs 
Office overheads 
Legal and professional 
Bank interest and charges 
Governance costs 
Expenditure on church buildings 

Total 
funds 
2018 

£ 

919,860 
73,996 

153,536 
24,272 
14,779 

9,346 
23,991 
17,567 

326 

1,237,673 

173,485 
9,678 

116,156 
4,492 

21,000 
5,811 

44,968 
34,815 
14,577 
28,676 
9,540 
6,109 

48,183 
10,392 
11,187 
12,301 

1,840 
5,478 

558,688 

1,796,361 

Total 
funds 
2017 

£ 

900,505 
72,939 

144,738 
26,073 
16,410 
6,679 

22,561 
15,538 

63 

1,205,506 

165,131 
8,120 

100,648 
4,638 

18,000 
2,609 

31,026 
32,270 
15,036 
22,003 
11,160 
5,304 

45,299 
24,838 
22,071 
11,737 

1,016 
5,376 
9,260 

535,542 

1,741,048 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

8, NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) 

This is stated after charging: 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets: 
- owned by the charity 

Auditors' remuneration - audit 
Auditors' remuneration - other services 
Operating lease rentals 

2018 
£ 

28,766 
2,800 
2,678 
4,686 

2017 
£ 

30,711 
2,800 
2,576 
2,938 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

9. STAFF COSTS 

a. Staff costs 

Staff costs were as follows: 

Wages and salaries 
Social security costs 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 

Agency staff costs 

b. Staff numbers 

2018 
£ 

1,093,345 
83,674 

269,692 

1,446,711 
17,567 

1,464,278 

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the year was as follows: 

2018 
No. 

Teachers 39 
Administration and support 23 
Management 5 

67 

Average headcount expressed as a full time equivalent: 

2018 
No. 

Teachers 25 
Administration and support 8 
Management 4 

37 

c. Higher paid staff 

2017 
£ 

1,065,636 
81,059 

245,386 

1,392,081 
15,538 

1,407,619 

2017 
No. 

36 
22 
5 

63 

2017 
No. 

25 
8 
5 

38 

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded 
£60,000 was: 

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 

2018 
No. 

1 

2017 
No. 

1 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

9. STAFF COSTS (continued) 

d. Key management personnel 

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the senior management team as listed on 
page 1. The total of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by key 
management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £248,041 (2017: £248,315). 

10. TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES 

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment 
with the academy trust. The Principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of 
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and other staff members under their contracts of 
employment, and not in respect of their role as Trustees. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other 
benefits was as follows: 

2018 2017 
£ £ 

P Herbert Remuneration 65,000-70,000 65,000-70,000 
Pension contributions paid 10,000-15,000 10, 000-15, 000 

S Grinsted Remuneration 40,000-45,000 40, 000-45, 000 
Pension contributions paid 5,000-10,000 5, 000-10, 000 

N Laing Remuneration 10,000-15,000 10, 000-15, 000 
Pension contributions paid 0-5,000 0-5,000 

During the year ended 31 August 2018, no Trustees received any reimbursement of expenses (2017 -
£NIL to no Trustees). 

11. TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE 

In accordance with normal commercial practice the trust has insurance in place to protect Trustees and 
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occuring whilst on Trust business. 
The limit of this indemnity is £10,000,000 and this cover is provided as part of the Risk Protection 
Arrangement offered by the Education Funding Agency. 

12. OTHER FINANCE INCOME 

Interest income on pension scheme assets 
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 

2018 
£ 

20,000 
(41,000) 

(21,000) 

2017 
£ 

14,000 
(32,000) 

(18,000) 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

Furniture Plant and 
and fixtures equipment 

£ £ 
Cost 

At 1 September 2017 16,902 85,267 
Additions 21,085 5,027 
Disposals (647) 

At 31 August 2018 37,987 89,647 

Depreciation 

At 1 September 2017 4,621 32,090 
Charge for the year 2,010 26,756 
On disposals (642) 

At 31 August 2018 6,631 58,204 

Net book value 

At31 August2018 31,356 31,443 

At 31 August 2017 12,281 53,177 

Total 
£ 

102,169 
26,112 

(647) 

127,634 

36,711 
28,766 

(642) 

64,835 

62,799 

65,458 

Moordown St John's Primary School has been granted use of the school buildings from The Winchester 
Diocesan Board of Finance, under a supplemental agreement that does not require the school to pay rent. 
This agreement includes a two year notice period. The land and buildings have not been recognised as 
assets of the academy on the basis that the academy trust's rights over the premises do not meet the 
definition of an asset, as it does not have control over access or works. Whilst the church allows the 
academy trust access to the premises, it can revoke this at any time subject to a two year notice period. In 
addition the supplemental agreement states that the church is required to give consent to capital works. 

DEBTORS 

2018 2017 
£ £ 

Trade debtors 27,677 20,281 
VAT recoverable 14,762 22,825 
Prepayments and accrued income 49,601 32,089 

92,040 75,195 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

15. CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year 

Trade creditors 
Other taxation and social security 
Other creditors 
Accruals and deferred income 

Deferred income 

Deferred income at 1 September 2017 
Resources deferred during the year 
Amounts released from previous years 

Deferred income at 31 August 2018 

2018 
£ 

48,061 
21,454 
23,554 
90,115 

183,184 

2018 
£ 

62,224 
77,932 

(62,224) 

77,932 

2017 
£ 

50,619 
17,647 
23,267 
65,024 

156,557 

2017 
£ 

54,669 
62,224 

(54,669) 

62,224 

At the balance sheet date the academy was holding funds received in advance of the 2018/19 financial 
year. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

16. STATEMENT OF FUNDS 

Balance at 1 Balance at 
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August 

2017 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2018 
£ £ £ £ £ £ 

Unrestricted funds 

General Funds 161,694 142,249 (148,725) (5,027) 150,191 

Restricted funds 

General Annual Grant 
(GAG) 1,294,958 (1,310,879) 15,921 
Pupil Premium 93,793 (93,793) 
Special Educational 
Needs 34,602 (34,602) 
Rates Relief 9,582 (9,582) 
Other Grants 93,353 (82,259) (11,094) 
Pension reserve (844,000) (108,000) 131,000 (821,000) 

(844,000) 1,526,288 (1,639,115) 4,827 131,000 (821,000) 

Restricted Fixed Asset funds 

Transfer on conversion 7,542 (4,134) 3,408 
DfE/ESFA capital grants 17,281 8,624 (206) (19,866) 5,833 
Swimming pool fund 5,082 (469) 4,613 
Capital expenditure from 
unrestricted 52,834 (23,955) 20,066 48,945 

82,739 8,624 (28,764) 200 62,799 

Total restricted funds (761,261) 1,534,912 (1,667,879) 5,027 131,000 (758,201) 

Total of funds (599,567) 1,677,161 (1,816,604) 131,000 (608,010) 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

16. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued) 

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows: 

General Annual Grant (GAG) 
Income from the ESFA which is to be used for the normal running costs of the academy, including 
education and support costs. 

Pupil Premium 
Funding received from the ESFA for children that qualify for free school meals to enable the academy to 
address the current underlying inequalities between those children and their wealthier peers. 

Higher Needs funding 
Income received from the Local Authority to fund further support for pupils with additional needs. 

Other revenue grants include: 
Universal Infant Free School Meals income provided by the ESFA to fund a free school meal to every pupil 
in reception and years 1 and 2. 

Pension Reserve 
The academy's share of the assets and liabilities in the Local Government Pension Scheme. This is 
currently in deficit due to an excess of scheme liabilities over scheme assets which was inherited on 
conversion to an academy. 

Fixed assets transferred on conversion 
The represents the buildings and equipment donated to the school from! he Dioceses of Portsmouth and 
Winchester and Local Authority on conversion to an academy. 

DfE/ESFA capital grants 
Devolved Formula Capital funding from the ESFA to cover the maintenance and purchase of the 
academy's assets. 

Swimming pool fund 
Funds raised for the refubishment of the swimming pool. 

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy was not subject to a limit on the 
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2018. 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

16. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued) 

STATEMENT OF FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR 

Balance at 
1 September Transfers 

2016 Income Expenditure in/out 
£ £ £ £ 

General Funds 156,792 169,487 (77,490) (87,095) 

Restricted funds 

General Annual Grant 
(GAG) 1,334,327 (1,334,327) 
Pupil Premium 95,447 (95,447) 
Special Educational 
Needs 43,517 (43,517) 
Other Grants 81,210 (81,210) 
Start Up Grant 251 (251) 
Pension reserve (901,000) (93,000) 

(900,749) 1,554,501 (1,647,752) 

Restricted Fixed Asset funds 

Transfer on conversion 11,946 (4,404) 
DfEIESFA capital grants 8,646 8,635 
Swimming pool fund 5,929 (847) 
Capital expenditure from 
unrestricted 459 (34,720) 87,095 

26,980 8,635 (39,971) 87,095 

Total restricted funds (873,769) 1,563,136 (1,687,723) 87,095 

Total of funds (716,977) 1,732,623 (1,765,213) 

Gains! 
(Losses) 

£ 

150,000 

150,000 

150,000 

150,000 

Balance at 
31 August 

2017 
£ 

161,694 

(844,000) 

(844,000) 

7,542 
17,281 
5,082 

52,834 

82,739 

(761,261) 

(599,567) 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

17. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS 

Unrestricted Restricted 
funds funds 

2018 2018 
£ £ 

Tangible fixed assets 
Current assets 333,375 
Creditors due within one year (183,184) 
Provisions for liabilities and charges (821,000) 

150,191 (821,000) 

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR 

Unrestricted Restricted 
funds funds 

2017 2017 
£ £ 

Tangible fixed assets 
Current assets 318,251 
Creditors due within one year (156,557) 
Provisions for liabilities and charges (844,000) 

161,694 (844,000) 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

funds 
2018 

£ 

62,799 

62,799 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

funds 
2017 

£ 

65,458 
17,281 

82,739 

Total 
funds 

2018 
£ 

62,799 
333,375 

(183,184) 
(821,000) 

(608,010) 

Total 
funds 

2017 
£ 

65,458 
335,532 

(156,557) 
(844,000) 

(599,567) 

18. RECONCILIATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities) 

Adjustment for: 
Depreciation charges 
Interest from investments 
Profit on the sale of fixed assets 
(lncrease)/decrease in debtors 
lncrease/(decrease) in creditors 
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income 
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 
Transfer of assets to the Diocese 

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities 

2018 
£ 

(139,443) 

28,766 
(143) 
(233) 

(16,845) 
26,627 
(8,624) 
87,000 
21,000 

(1,895) 

2017 
£ 

(32,590) 

30,711 
(152) 

(36,000) 
34,222 

(953) 
(8,635) 
75,000 
18,000 

9,259 

88,862 
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MOORDOWN ST JOHN'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

19. ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash in hand 

Total 

20. PENSION COMMITMENTS 

2018 2017 
£ £ 

241,335 260,337 

241,335 260,337 

The academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for 
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Dorset County Council. Both are Multi-employer 
defined benefit pension schemes. 

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 
March 2016. 

Contributions amounting to £22,599 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2018 (2017 - 22,098) and 
are included within creditors. 

Teachers' Pension Scheme 

Introduction 

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by 
the Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, 
automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract, although 
they are able to opt out. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis - these contributions 
along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension 
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. 

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme 

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS 
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 
published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial 
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and 
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in 
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The 
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the 
valuation and subsequent consultation are: 

• employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay, including a 0.08% employer 
administration charge. 

• total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for 
service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions 
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional 
past service deficit of £14,900 million 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 

20. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 

• an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations 

• the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of 
real earnings growth is assumed to be 2. 75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%. 

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September 
2015. The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the 
employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 2019. 

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £112,397 (2017-£115,229). 

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website 
(www.teacherspensions.co. u kl news/em ployers/2014106/pu blication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx). 

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has 
accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set 
out above the information available on the scheme. 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. 
The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2018 was £91,000 (2017 - £77,000), of which 
employer's contributions totalled £70,000 (2017 - £59,000) and employees' contributions totalled £21,000 
(2017 - £18,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 18.8% for employers and 5.5-6.8%% 
for employees. 

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the 
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the 
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013. 
Principal actuarial assumptions: 

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 
Rate of increase in salaries 
Rate of increase for pensions in payment I inflation 
Inflation assumption (CPI) 

2018 

2.65 % 
3.80 % 
2.30 % 
2.30 % 

2017 

2.60 % 
4.20 % 
2.70 % 
2.70 % 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. 
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

2018 2017 
Retiring today 
Males 24.0 23.9 
Females 26.1 26.0 

Retiring in 20 years 
Males 26.3 26.2 
Females 28.5 28.3 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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20. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 

Sensitivity analysis 

Discount rate +0.1 % 
Discount rate -0. 1 % 
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase 
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease 
CPI rate +0.1% 
CPI rate -0.1 % 

The academy's share of the assets in the scheme was: 

Equities 
Gilts 
Corporate bonds 
Cash 
Property 
Investment funds 
Asset backed securities 
Infrastructure 

Total market value of assets 

The actual return on scheme assets was £18,000 (2017 - £93,000). 

At 31 August 
2018 

£ 

(33,000) 
31,000 
57,000 

(55,000) 
3,000 

(3,000) 

Fair value at 
31 August 

2018 
£ 

441,000 
102,000 
56,000 

8,000 
82,000 
49,000 
38,000 
35,000 

811,000 

At 31 August 
2017 

£ 

(29,000) 
30,000 
55,000 

(53,000) 
4,000 

(3,000) 

Fair value at 
31 August 

2017 
£ 

397,000 
96,000 
81,000 
19,000 
63,000 
31,000 

32,000 

719,000 

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure 
account are as follows: 

2018 2017 
£ £ 

Current service cost (156,000) (134,000) 
Interest income 20,000 14,000 
Interest cost (41,000) (32,000) 
Admin expenses (1,000) 

Total (178,000) (152,000) 
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20. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows: 

Opening defined benefit obligation 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Employee contributions 
Actuarial gains 
Benefits paid 

Closing defined benefit obligation 

Movements in the fair value of the academy's share of scheme assets: 

Opening fair value of scheme assets 
Interest income 
Actuarial gains/(losses 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 
Benefits paid 
Administration expenses 

Closing fair value of scheme assets 

21. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 

2018 
£ 

1,563,000 
156,000 
41,000 
21,000 

(133,000) 
(16,000) 

1,632,000 

2018 
£ 

719,000 
20,000 
(2,000) 
70,000 
21,000 

(16,000) 
(1,000) 

811,000 

2017 
£ 

1,544,000 
134,000 
32,000 
18,000 

(110,000) 
(55,000) 

1,563,000 

2017 
£ 

643,000 
14,000 
40,000 
59,000 
18,000 

(55,000) 

719,000 

At 31 August 2018 the total of the Academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
operating leases was: 

2018 2017 
£ £ 

Amounts payable: 

Within 1 year 4,686 4,686 
Between 1 and 5 years 4,686 9,372 

Total 9,372 14,058 
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22. MEMBERS' LIABILITY 

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the 
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a 
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £ 10 for the debts and liabilities contracted 
before he/she ceases to be a member. 

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from 
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which 
Trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with 
the requirements of the AFH and with the trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures 
relating to connected and related party transactions. 

Included with repair and maintenance costs is £2,095 paid to P Couzins for plumbing services supplied to 
the school. P Couzins is the father of R Laws, the School Business Manager. 
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